
Traffic Safety Committee 08-20-15  1  
 

TRAFFIC SAFETY COMMITTEE  
THURSDAY, AUGUST 20, 2015 

SELECTBOARD MEETING ROOM – 8:00AM 
MINUTES 

 
Members present:  Town Manager Peter B. Elwell, Fire Chief Mike Bucossi, Public Works Director Steve 
Barrett, Police Chief Mike Fitzgerald, Planning Director Rod Francis, Chamber of Commerce 
Representative Leo Schiff, and School Representative Betsy Gentile. 
 
Selectboard representative present:  Donna Macomber 
 
Other staff members present:  Assistant Town Manager Patrick Moreland, Highway/Utilities 
Superintendent Hannah O’Connell, and Police Captain Mark Carignan. 
 
Others present:  John Allen, Kathleen White, Prudence MacKinney, Terry A. Carter, Alice Charkes, and 
others who did not sign the attendance sheet. 
 
Town Manager Peter Elwell called the meeting to order at 8:01am.  He briefly noted the discussions over 
the past two months over changing the normal meeting date and time of the committee.  He confirmed 
that the committee would meet on the third Thursday of every month with alternating times of 8:00am and 
4:00pm. 
 
Approve Minutes – June 23, 2015. 

MOTION BY STEVE BARRETT, AND SECONDED BY BETSY GENTILE, TO APPROVE THE 
MINUTES FROM JUNE 23, 2015 AS PRESENTED.  MOTION CARRIED UNANIMOUSLY. 

Public Participation – Terry Carter thanked Steve Barrett for installing the speed-o-meter measuring 
vehicular speed and collecting traffic data on northbound traffic on Putney Road near Harris Avenue.  
Elwell said that a more detailed discussion would take place when the agenda item was addressed later 
in the meeting. 

Monthly Report on Pedestrian and Bicycle Incidents – Police Chief Fitzgerald reported that from July 1 to 
the present there were a total of 104 motor vehicle accidents.  He said that 90 of the accidents did not 
contain personal injuries, and 14 of the accidents contained non-serious personal injuries.  He said there 
were 4 accidents involving pedestrians and 1 involving a bicycle.  He said the locations of the pedestrian 
accidents were: (1) the five-way stop at Elliot Street and Union Hill, (2) Elm Street and Canal Street, (3) 
Flat Street and Main Street, and (4) in the parking lot at the Gulf station on Canal Street.  He said that the 
bicycle accident happened by the Subaru dealership on Putney Road and the vehicle operator was cited 
for failure to yield.  There was a brief discussion by the Committee. 

Traffic Calming Plan Safety Action Items 

a. Moore Court Tenants Association – “Caution Kids at Play” Sign or other safety measure(s).  O’Connell 
said that a letter had been received from Moore Court Tenants Association asking for cautionary 
measures to be installed on Moore Court to alert motorists to children in the area.  She said she 
responded to the Association and informed them that “kids at play” signs were not an enforceable and 
suggested that Moore Court could elect to install cautionary signs on their property.  Elwell said that 
although Moore Court was maintained as a public street, it actually functioned as a driveway for Moore 
Court residents and he suggested that the Town could work with the residents to install cautionary signs 
on their property and implement peer pressure on drivers from the neighborhood.  There was some 
discussion by the committee about other safety devices that were available for purchase, such as 
movable speed plateaus, but such devices were expensive and would inhibit road maintenance.  There 
was also discussion about certain road maintenance requirements that were likely included in the 
development agreement between the Housing Partnership, HUD, and the Town.  It was decided to add 
the matter to the agenda next month and invite representatives from the Moore Court Tenants 
Association and/or Brattleboro Housing Partnership to attend. 

  



Traffic Safety Committee 08-20-15  2  
 

b. Use of “Speed-o-Meter” for Monitoring and Reducing Speed.  O’Connell discussed the portable radar 
speed devices owned by the Town and noted various locations where the devices had been installed 
recently.  She said one device remained in the Academy School area and other devices were intended to 
be rotated to collect traffic volume and speed data in different locations.  She said one device was 
installed yesterday on Putney Road near Harris Place at the request of Terry Carter but she did not have 
data yet.  There was a brief discussion about the devices and use of the devices.  It was decided that the 
matter would be added to the agenda next month and O’Connell would bring data with her to that 
meeting.   

c. Chapin, Chase, Oak and Forest Street Traffic Concerns – Barrett reviewed the concerns and requests 
submitted by residents in the Chapin, Chase, Oak and Forest Street area.  He said that the neighbors 
were not available to attend this meeting and that the matter would be on the agenda next month when 
neighbors could attend and participate in the discussion.  Carter noted that the neighborhood was fairly 
protected due to the traffic restrictions that had been implemented when the roundabout was constructed.  
There was some discussion by the committee. 

d. Intersection at Maple and Fairview Streets – John Allen spoke about the dangers of speeding traffic on 
Maple Street in general and at the intersection of Fairview Street.  He said that vehicles speeded on 
Maple Street traveling from Austine School and often did not slow for the Fairview intersection.  He said 
many vehicles used that location for a short cut to Canal Street and the schools on Fairground Road.  He 
suggested utilizing traffic enforcement or installing a deterrent to slow the speed of traffic.  O’Connell 
discussed some traffic data from last year showing vehicular traffic at Ledgewood traveling at 34 mph 
where the posted speed was 25 mph.  Barrett said that a radar speed device was recently installed at the 
intersection and would collect traffic data from that area.  He also discussed other similar intersections 
and reviewed some remediation efforts, such as the Union Hill / Western Avenue intersection.  He said 
that the Selectboard included a line item in the budget of $5,000 for traffic safety devices and he 
discussed some of the expenditures to-date, including the purchase of the radar speed signs and 
pedestrian push-buttons to be installed near the Brattleboro Memorial Hospital.  There was discussion by 
the committee about the design of the intersection, speed of traffic on Maple Street and Fairview Street, 
reducing speed in the area, funding restrictions, and utilizing the Traffic Calming Plan and toolbox to 
improve such areas in town.  

Collaboration with Local Motion – Update.  O’Connell said that staff members met with representatives 
from Local Motion on July 24 to review the project goals and schedule, and to sign a Memorandum of 
Understanding.  She said that she expected to have additional information to present to the committee at 
the September or October meeting.  There was a brief discussion by the committee. 

Ordinance Change re: Flat Street Parking - Moreland said that the Parking Enforcement Division had 
requested the following two ordinance amendments to Appendix C for loading and parking on Flat Street:   
(1) Article I, Section 16-87 – correct the distance of the loading zone on the north side of Flat Street; and 
(2) Article II, Section 16-100 – correct the distance of the “no parking” zone and eliminate a 20 minute 
free-parking space in front of the former Sanel Auto store on the north side of Flat Street.  He said that 
the changes to the “loading zone” (by Sam’s Department Store to the Boys & Girls Club) and “no parking 
zone” were to reconcile the ordinance to meet the actual location and practice of the zones.  He said that 
the “free-parking” space in front of former Sanel Auto store was being eliminated because it was awkward 
having a free space in the middle of metered parking area, and that a car parked in the space obscures a 
pedestrian entering into the crosswalk.  He said that snow accumulation can also block a portion of the 
driveway into the property owned by Peter Johnson.  He said that Mr. Johnson agreed to the elimination 
of the space.  There was a brief discussion by the Committee. 

MOTION BY BETSY GENTILE, AND SECONDED BY MIKE BUCOSSI, TO RECOMMEND TO THE 
SELECTBOARD APPROVAL OF CHANGES TO THE ORDINANCES AS DISCUSSED.  MOTION 
CARRIED UNANIMOUSLY. 

Committee Meeting Schedule – Third Thursday of each Month; Even Months at 8:00am, Odd Months at 
4:00pm.  Elwell confirmed the new meeting schedule of the committee which would meet on the third 
Thursday of each month with the meeting starting at 8:00am in even months and 4:00pm in odd months.  
He said the next meeting would be held on Thursday, September 17 at 4:00pm. 



Traffic Safety Committee 08-20-15  3  
 

Other Business  
 
Schiff stated that he received feedback from citizens about two areas where vehicles used excessive 
speed.  He said one area was Pine Street where a moving vehicle recently hit a parked vehicle, and the 
resident asked for some sort of traffic calming practice on Pine Street.  He said the second complaint was 
about the speed of traffic on Cedar Street between Western Avenue and Myrtle Street.  Elwell asked that 
Schiff provide contact information to Department of Public Works so they could follow up on the 
complaints and determine whether those matters should come before this committee. 
 
Elwell said that he recently received notice of a mid-day situation where an oversized load (truck carrying 
a mobile home) got entangled with traffic at the intersection of Main and High Streets and possibly 
scraped and damaged a car on the street.  He said that several minutes of danger to motorists and 
pedestrians ensued until the blockage was removed.  He asked whether the committee could regulate 
how and when oversize loads move through the community.  There was a lengthy discussion about 
weight and size regulations on vehicles, as well as the multiple jurisdictions and regulations on town, 
state and federal roads.  It was determined that such a matter was outside of the jurisdiction of this 
committee. 
 
There was no further business. 
 
ELWELL ADJOURNED THE MEETING AT 9:23AM. 
 


